APPROVED MINUTES
PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING
CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA
FEBRUARY 13, 2018
7:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER:

Planning Commission Chairman Engstrom called the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming Planning
Commission of February 13, 2018 to order at 7:00 P.M.

CALL OF ROLL:

On a Call of the Roll the following members of the Wyoming Planning Commission were present:
Judy Coughlin, Matthew Engstrom, and Dennis Schilling.

Members Absent: Mark Lobermeier

Also Present: Council Liaison Lisa Iverson. Eric Zweber, WSB, and Zoning Administrator Fred Weck.
DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM:

Chairman Engstrom determined a quorum was present.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

OPEN FORUM:

“An opportunity for members of the public to address the Planning Commission on items not on the
current Agenda. Items requiring Planning Commission action maybe deferred to staff for research
and future Planning Commission Agendas if appropriate.”

No members of the public spoke.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

1. Consider approving the minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming, Minnesota
Planning Commission for January 23, 2018.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER ENGSTROM, TO APPROVE THE “REGULAR MEETING”
MINUTES OF THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR JANUARY 23, 2018,
AS PRESENTED.

Voting Aye:  Coughlin, Engstrom, and Schilling.
Voting Nay: None

Abstain: None

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARINGS:

2. None

NEW BUSINESS:

3. None

OLD BUSINESS

4, Comprehensive Plan Update

Eric Zweber, WSB, stated that he had reviewed minutes and listened to the audio recordings of the
Comprehensive Plan discussions from September, 2016; April, 2017; and August, 2017. He gave
a brief overview of the items he had captured from the Planning Commission discussions. He stated



that the Commission discussed growth trends, growth potential as well as possible urban services
areas. As part of the urban services discussions, there was a new section in the southeast corner of
the City that would remain larger lots designated as rural residential and these would not have urban
services. He reviewed what he is calling the “northeast east Viking Boulevard” area and noted that
the City could serve that whole area with one lift station that would cost about $500,000. He stated
that there is a large wetland complex that limits the locations that can be developed. There would
be about 20 acres of medium density residential and about 50 acres of low density residential, so
urban services in this location would be feasible. He reviewed the revised Land Use Map which is
615 units for lower density; 563 units for medium and higher density; and 730 units for mixed use.
He stated that there is a different outlook for development in US Highway 8 corridor. The projected
cost would be about $15,000,000 for sewer and water. He stated that the reality is that the
infrastructure will be brought over and extended, as development happens, but these numbers are
looking at doing it all today and not waiting for development. He stated that these costs did not
include any right-of-way acquisition, so the number may be even higher than $15,000,000. There
would not be assessments for this either, because it would only be brought in for commercial. He
reviewed the potential commercial uses on the lots in this area and noted that it was decided this
was not feasible to simply pay to extend the utilities into the area with the hope that it develops.

Commissioner Coughlin asked for clarification on if there would be a connection at Chisago City and
come down Highway 8.

Mr. Zweber stated that the plan came to fruition because of the merger of the township and the City.
Part of that agreement was a legal challenge that the City could show that it could provide its own
infrastructure.

Commissioner Coughlin asked about the density calculations of 35% lot coverage.

Mr. Zweber stated that the only way the City would get above the 35% lot coverage was if you
implemented structured parking, so that is where they stopped, because they do not foresee
structured parking for the City.

Chair Engstrom asked about the mixed use area and how it would tie into utilities.

Mr. Zweber stated will likely have to be looked at whether it can be phased in, or perhaps a
community septic in the interim and public utilities in the long term.

Chair Engstrom stated that he thinks it is important to include in the plan the possibility of community
septic.

Mr. Zweber stated that community septic is included in the Comprehensive Plan, but may not be in
this section. He will review that and see if it can be “beefed up”.

Chair Engstrom stated that it would be helpful to identify the areas that can be developed more
densely along with a possibility for community septic rather than just a hodge-podge approach in our
thinking and planning.

Mr. Zweber read aloud a portion of the Comprehensive Plan that included language about private
community systems. He stated that the current language is a good start, but it could be made more
specific in relation to development along US Highway 8.

Zoning Administrator Weck noted that it was also important to pay attention to the type of soil in this
area because there needs to be a balance between the buildings and the size of septic system
needed.

Chair Engstrom asked about the Carlos Avery State Wildlife Management area and where it would
fall in the land use map.

Mr. Zweber stated that those particular maps hadn’'t been changed yet, because he wanted to get
the Commission’s feedback on tonight’s discussion items, but now he will go back and make changes



that include changing the urban growth boundaries with what the Commission discussed tonight. He
moved on to discussing the objectives and reviewed the language changes that were included. He
noted that some of this language came from recommendations by the EDA, as well as the Planning
Commission. The objectives: Respect the Natural Environment; Development in Sustainable
Manner; Diversity Housing Options; Encourage a Thriving Local Community; Strengthen the City
Center; Encourage an Inviting Community; Create a Park, Trail, and Recreation System; Create
Interconnected Neighborhoods; Protect our Water Resources.

Chair Engstrom asked why, in the fourth objective, the word “economy” was taken out and changed
to the word “community”.

Mr. Zweber stated that he felt the word “community” was more global.
Commissioner Coughlin stated that she liked the word “community”.

Chair Engstrom stated that because the EDA was included, he felt that perhaps the word “economy”
would be better here, if the City wanted to create more of a standalone objective about the local
economy.

Council Liaison Iverson stated that there was a conversation yesterday at the EDA regarding having
residential as part of plan. At this time, they are not including residential in the EDA.

Chair Engstrom stated that it seems to be more economy based, than community based, so he thinks
it should be changed back to economy.

Mr. Zweber stated he would make that change. He also noted that it is important in looking at a 20-
year document like this, that there is an understanding that once things are reviewed, they aren’t
necessarily “done” for 20 years. There will be times when things, for example, the shoreland
ordinance, will have issues arise that will require the ordinance to be reviewed. He gave a brief
overview of the action steps.

Commissioner Coughlin asked about Action Steps items #5 and #6: Consider Assistance with
Facade Improvements. She asked where this language came from and if it was something cities
typically do.

Mr. Zweber stated that it isn’t necessary common, but a number of cities do it. You can sometimes
use Community Development Block Grant funds, if it will bring a fagade up to building code. There
are a few other funding options out there. The goal is to beautify the city and there are, in some
cases, matching funds for activities like that. He reviewed some of the qualifications and how a
revolving fund like this can work, and noted that some will need to be managed by the County. He
reviewed some details of small cities grant.

Commissioner Coughlin asked about item #4: Consider Adoption of a Mixed Use Zoning District.
She noted the City already has a mixed use district and questioned how this would be different.

Mr. Zweber stated that since the City just updated to a new website, all of the zoning districts were
not on the one he viewed. He will follow up with Zoning Administrator Weck and make sure that he
has the most updated information. He commented that the new website is very sharp looking.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that she thinks this document and all past discussions should be
carefully reviewed to ensure that everything that the Commission has discussed has been included
in the final document.

Chair Engstrom stated that under the Strengthen the City Center, section he would encourage
working into the ordinances some wording that would encourage shared parking. He noted that our
downtown should actually look like a downtown and would also suggest some language changes to
the setback ordinances in the city center.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that the Commission looks at applications, development by
development and just considers everything individually and she would like to see a way to combine



some of these things in the big picture, to help get a more attractive City and make it overall more
cohesive.

Chair Engstrom stated that he also noticed there is some language that is dated, for example, some
references to “township”.

Mr. Zweber stated that they will do some keyword searches, but he would like the Commissions help
to find some of these things.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he also has a few things in mind that he would like to do a
closer search for within the Comprehensive Plan, and make sure they are accurate with where things
are now in the City.

Mr. Zweber stated that he will send Zoning Administrator Weck the Word version of document so
making the changes will be easier.

Chair Engstrom asked what the next step is for this document, after the changes are made.

Mr. Zweber stated that the next official step is the public hearing, where he recommends covering a
highlight of the overall big changes to the Comprehensive Plan, review the changes to the land use
parcels, and review the action steps.

5. Ordinance Review

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he made the changes the Commission had recommended at
the last meeting. He noted that he had actually added one because of an application received. Under
Section 40-450, item (2), these standards shall not apply to farm structures that are allowed as a
permitted use in the Agricultural District. He stated that Sunrise Apple Orchard wanted to have a
storage building for their apple production, which is basically a pole barn, albeit a nice-looking pole
barn. He reviewed his reasoning behind the suggested wording changes and reviewed some of the
existing standards to cover the family farms.

Chair Engstrom stated that the Commission had not taken action on this ordinance yet because they
wanted to make sure that Commissioner Schilling got a chance to review it before any action was
taken.

Commissioner Schilling asked if the Commission was recommending cutting out Class 4.
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that it was essentially being combined with Class 3.

Commissioner Coughlin asked about Section 40-450, and whether multi-family dwelling should be
kept in there or moved up into residential area.

Zoning Administrator Weck clarified that this was looking at non-residential.

Commissioner Coughlin also questioned Section 40-417, whether it has to be metal for the lawn or
storage sheds.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that this was actually meant to capture those little sheds from
Menards. He thinks this wording could be changed to just say “storage shed”. He reviewed the
current process for compliance with this and noted that it is usually complaint driven.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER SCHILLING, TO SCHEDULE THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR
THE ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS ORDINANCE ON MARCH 27, 2018.

Voting Aye:  Coughlin, Engstrom, and Schilling.
Voting Nay: None
Abstain: None



Commissioner Coughlin stated that when she joined the Planning Commission, she was provided
with copies of both the Comprehensive Plan and the Subdivision Ordinance and suggested it would
be helpful if Commissioner Schilling was provided those two documents.

Commissioner Schilling stated that he agreed that those would be very helpful because he has just
looked at bits and pieces over the years.

Chair Engstrom stated that he did not think he had ever gotten those documents either.
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he would get them copies of those documents.
COMMUNICATIONS:

6. None
UPDATES:

7. None
8. Adjourn

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSION MEMBER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY COMMISSION
MEMBER SCHILLING, TO ADJOURN THE FEBRUARY 13, 2018, PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING AT 8:25 P.M.

Voting Aye:  Coughlin, Engstrom, and Schilling.
Voting Nay: None

Abstain: None



